
City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, October 22, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem Wayne Carpenter. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Planning Cheryl Maxwell. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Andy Davis, Senior Pastor of First Baptist 
Church of Belton. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Presentation of National Night Out Block Party Awards: 
 
• Rookie of the Year - Legend Oaks, Host: Joan Gillette 
• Best Block Party (Residential)- Liberty Valley, Host: Raydean Golding  
• Best Themed Party - Lone Star Pediatric Dental, Host: Tiffany Hartman 
• Best Block Party (Commercial) – CVS, Host: Donna Gott 
 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of October 8, 2019, City Council Meeting. 
 
5. Consider authorizing extension of agreement with Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & 

Therrell, P.C. (JRBT) for Professional Audit Services for the FY 2019 audit. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
6. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned Development 

(Commercial-1) District for an RV Park, to Amended Planned Development 
(Commercial-1) District for an RV Park to consider variances to the RV Park 
development standards (Chapter 19 City Code of Ordinances) on approximately 
21.757 acres located at 3360 I-35 Service Road, on the east side of I-35, south of 
Groves Road. 

 
7. Consider a final plat of West Canyon Trails Phase I, comprising 11.225 acres, 

located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell Street. 
 
8. Consider a final plat of Trujillo Addition, comprising 1.102 acre, located at 1601 

Connell Street, on the west side of Connell Street, north of Laila Lane. 
 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, October 22, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem Wayne Carpenter. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Planning Cheryl Maxwell. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Andy Davis, Senior Pastor of First Baptist 
Church of Belton. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Presentation of National Night Out Block Party Awards: 
 
• Rookie of the Year - Legend Oaks, Host: Joan Gillette 
• Best Block Party (Residential)- Liberty Valley, Host: Raydean Golding  
• Best Themed Party - Lone Star Pediatric Dental, Host: Tiffany Hartman 
• Best Block Party (Commercial) – CVS, Host: Donna Gott 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 

Consent Agenda 

Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

4. Consider minutes of October 8, 2019, City Council Meeting.

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval.

5. Consider authorizing extension of agreement with Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd &
Therrell, P.C. (JRBT) for Professional Audit Services for the FY 2019 audit.

See Staff Report from Interim Director of Finance Susan Allamon. Recommend
authorization of final contract extension.

Planning and Zoning 

6. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned
Development (Commercial-1) District for an RV Park, to Amended Planned
Development (Commercial-1) District for an RV Park to consider variances to
the RV Park development standards (Chapter 19 City Code of Ordinances) on
approximately 21.757 acres located at 3360 I-35 Service Road, on the east side
of I-35, south of Groves Road.

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on
October 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended
approval of this zoning change, and Staff concurs with their recommendation.

7. Consider a final plat of West Canyon Trails Phase I, comprising 11.225 acres,
located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell
Street.

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on
October 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended
approval of this final plat, and Staff concurs with their recommendation.

8. Consider a final plat of Trujillo Addition, comprising 1.102 acre, located at
1601 Connell Street, on the west side of Connell Street, north of Laila Lane.

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on
October 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended
approval of this final plat, and Staff concurs with their recommendation.



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 8, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 

The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson and 
Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson, Guy O’Banion, Dan Kirkley and John 
R. Holmes, Sr. Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter was absent. Staff present included
Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, John Messer, Amy Casey, Susan Allamon, Chris Brown, Paul
Romer, Bob van Til, Jeremy Allamon, Charlotte Walker, Brian Campbell, Judy Garrett,
Cynthia Hernandez and Kim Kroll.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas 
Flag were led by Cub Scout Pack #117. The Invocation was given by Jeff Miller, Pastor 
of First United Methodist Church. 

1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.

2. Public Comments. (Audio 2:53) There were none.

3. Proclamation: Colonial Heritage Month - October 2019 (Audio 2:56)

Sandy Boyd received the proclamation on behalf of the Governor Samuel Matthews
Chapter of Colonial Dames of the 17th Century.

Consent Agenda (Audio 7:17) 

Items 4-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

4. Consider minutes of September 24, 2019, City Council meeting.

5. Consider a resolution appointing Brandon Bozon to the Bell County Tax
Appraisal District Board of Directors.

6. Consider appointments/reappointments to various Boards.

A. Bell County Public Health District Board of Health
B. Electrical Board

7. Consider a resolution of support for the 2019 Texas State Defense Economic
Adjustment Assistance Grant (DEAAG) proposed by the Heart of Texas
Defense Alliance.

8. Consider authorizing the following purchases of vehicles and heavy
equipment as provided for in the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund:



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 8, 2019 – Page 2 

A. Water Tank Truck and Dump Truck for the Public Works Street Department.
B. Excavator for the Public Works Water and Sewer Department.
C. Light Duty Truck for the Public Works Building Maintenance Department.
D. Light Duty 4x4 Truck for the Public Works Utility Administration

Department.
E. Backhoe and Light Duty Truck for the Parks Department.

9. Consider an ordinance on second reading, granting Waste Management of
Texas, Inc., the exclusive right and privilege to provide residential and small
commercial solid waste collection, disposal and recycling services.

Upon a motion for approval of the Consent Agenda by Councilmember Holmes, and a 
second by Councilmember Kirkley, Items 1-9, including the following captioned 
resolutions and ordinance, were unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-21-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE TAX APPRAISAL DISTRICT BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-22-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
SUPPORTING THE 2019 TEXAS STATE DEFENSE ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT 
ASSITANCE GRANT (DEAAG) PROPOSED BY THE HEART OF TEXAS DEFENSE 
ALLIANCE (HOTDA) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-50 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO WASTE MANAGEMENT OF 
TEXAS, INCORPORATED, TO PROVIDE RESIDENTIAL AND SMALL 
COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING 
SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF BELTON. 

Miscellaneous 

10.  Consider authorizing a professional services agreement with Maria Carmen G.
Garcia to be appointed as the new Assistant City Attorney/City Prosecutor.
(Audio 9:39)

Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember
O’Banion, Maria Carmen G. Garcia was appointed as the new Assistant City
Attorney/City Prosecutor by a vote of 6-0.

11. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance authorizing the issuance of
the City of Belton, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds; Levying an Ad
Valorem Tax in Support of the Bonds; Establishing Procedures for Selling and



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 8, 2019 – Page 3 
 

  

Delivery of the Bonds; and Authorizing Other Matters Relating to the Bonds. 
(Audio 13:05) 
 
Public Hearing: no one spoke for or against. 
 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Leigh and a second by 
Councilmember Holmes, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a 
vote of 6-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-51 
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS; LEVYING AN AD VALOREM 
TAX IN SUPPORT OF THE BONDS; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT, A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, A PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND 
AN ESCROW AGREEMENT; ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR SELLING 
AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS; AND AUTHORIZING OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE BONDS 
 

12. Consider authorizing the BEDC Executive Director to execute a contract for 
the sale of 13.76 acres of the former Rockwool site on Taylor’s Valley Road to 
Perro Grande Commercial, LLC. (Audio 20:15) 
 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by 
Councilmember Pearson, the sale of 13.76 acres was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:03 p.m. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider authorizing extension of agreement with Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
(JRBT) for Professional Audit Services for the FY 2019 audit. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Finance Department – Susan Allamon, Interim Director of Finance 
 
Background 

 
In August 2015, the City Council approved a contract for audit services with Jaynes, 
Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell (JRBT) of Waco. The contract was for one year, with the option to 
extend for four subsequent years. The initial contract was extended for the FY 2016, 2017 
and 2018 audits, and both City Staff and JRBT would like to extend the contract for the FY 
2019 audit. This is the final extension allowed per the contract. Kristy Davis would again be 
the JRBT partner in charge of Belton’s audit. Enclosed is a proposal from JRBT extending the 
contract for one year. 
 
Assuming the City continued with one major program required to be audited under the Single 
Audit Act and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, the all-inclusive fee estimate for five 
years was as follows: 
 
FY 2015: $33,700 
FY 2016: $34,370 
FY 2017: $35,060 
FY 2018: $35,760 
FY 2019: $36,480  
 
The City will have a major program required to be audited under the Single Audit Act and the 
State of Texas Single Audit Circular. The project is the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Trail, 
funded partially with a grant that triggers the Single Audit requirement. As such, the FY 2019 
fee is estimated to be the $36,480 listed above. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: $36,480 
 
Budgeted:     ☒ Yes    ☐ No 
 
Funding Source(s): General Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, BEDC Operating Fund 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend extension of agreement with Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. for the 
FY 2019 audit. 
 
Attachments 
 
FY 2019 Engagement Letter 



 

 

 
 
 
 

October 9, 2019 
 
 
The City Council and  
   the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas  76513 
 
 
You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Belton, Texas (the “City”), as of September 30, 
2019, and for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
In addition, we will audit the City’s compliance over major federal award programs for the year 
ended September 30, 2019.  We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of 
the audit engagement by means of this letter.  Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of 
our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit and an opinion on compliance regarding the 
City’s major federal award programs. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP) require 
that supplementary information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of 
changes in the City’s net pension liability and total OPEB liability and related ratios and 
employer contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information (“RSI”) in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAS”).  These limited 
procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of 
measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries.  We will not express an opinion or provide any form of 
assurance on the RSI.  The following RSI is required by U.S. GAAP.  This RSI will be subjected 
to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

2. Schedule of Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – 
Employees’ Pension Plan 
 

3. Schedule of Contributions – Employees’ Pension Plan 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 

4. Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – 
Employees’ OPEB Plan 

 

5. Schedule of Contributions – Employees’ OPEB Plan 
 
Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the City’s basic financial statements.  
We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in 
our audit of the basic financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling the supplementary information to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and additional procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS.  We intend to provide an opinion on 
the following supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 
 

1. Combining financial statements; 
 

2. Individual fund financial statements. 
 
Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that 
will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements: 
 

1. Information included in the introductory section included in the City’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; and 
 

2. Information included in the statistical section included in the City’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 

 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied 
in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling the schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional 
procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS.  We intend to provide an opinion on whether the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented fairly in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Data Collection Form 
 
Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection 
Form that are our responsibility.  The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and 
conclusions.  It is management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial 
statements, schedule of expenditure of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings 
and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit 
clearinghouse.  The financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
 

 

unlocked.  Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the federal audit 
clearinghouse.  We will assist you in the electronic submission and certification.  You may 
request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package submitted to 
pass-through entities.  
 
The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt 
of our auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically 
waived by a federal cognizant or oversight agency for audits.  Data Collection Forms submitted 
untimely are one of the factors in assessing programs at a higher risk. 
 
Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States of America; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”).  Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.  An audit involves 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error, 
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 
regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements.  
 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements  If appropriate, our procedures will therefore 
include tests of documentary evidence that support the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
direct confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by 
correspondence with creditors and financial institutions.  As part of our audit process, we will 
require written representations from your attorneys, and they may bill you for responding.  At the 
conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written representations from you about the 
financial statements and related matters. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused 
by errors, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, detected abuse, or violations 
of laws or governmental regulations) may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America.  Please note that the 
determination of abuse is subjective and Government Auditing Standards does not require 
auditors to detect abuse. 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
 

 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the City’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  However, we will communicate to you in writing 
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the 
audit of the basic financial statements that we have identified during the audit.  Our 
responsibility as auditors is, of course, limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to any other periods. 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the City’s basic financial 
statements.  Our report will be addressed to the City Council.  We cannot provide assurance that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed.  Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us 
to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s). or withdraw 
from the engagement. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a 
written report describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting 
and over compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the 
results of that testing.  However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over 
financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be 
expressed. 
 
Audit of Major Program Compliance 
 
Our audit of the City’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in 
accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform 
Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major programs in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us 
to express such an opinion on major federal award program compliance and to render the 
required reports.  We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance will 
be expressed.  Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or 
withdraw from the engagement. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the City has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs.  Our 
procedures will consist of determining major federal programs and performing the applicable 
procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance 
Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the City’s major programs.  The purpose of those procedures will be to express an 
opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in 
our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
 

 

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or 
detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of the City’s 
major federal award programs.  However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary 
to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our 
report. 
 
We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion 
regarding the City’s major federal award programs, and a report on internal controls over 
compliance that will report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; 
however, such report will not express an opinion on internal control. 
 
Other Services 
 
We will prepare the financial statements of the City in conformity with U.S. GAAP based on 
information provided by you.  We will perform the services in accordance with applicable 
professional standards.  Our firm, in its sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to 
perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as making management 
decisions or assuming management responsibilities. 
 
We will not assume management’s responsibilities on behalf of the City.  However, we will 
provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the City in performing its 
responsibilities. 
 
City management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all 
management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) 
evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility 
for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, 
including monitoring ongoing activities.   
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and when appropriate, those charged 
with governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 
 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP; 
 

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;  



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 6 
 
 
 

 

c. For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended during the 
period and the federal programs under which they are received, including federal awards 
and funding increments received prior to December 26, 2014 (if any), and those received 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (generally received after December 26, 2014); 

d. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for 
federally funded activities; 

e. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and 
noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 

f. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over federal awards; 

g. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards that 
provide reasonable assurance that the nonfederal entity is managing federal wards in 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal 
awards; 

h. For identifying and ensuring that the City complies with federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of federal award programs and implementing systems designed 
to achieve compliance with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of federal award programs;  

i. For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely the financial results of each federal 
award in accordance with the requirements of the award; 

j. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, 
or other studies that directly relate to the objective of the audit, including whether related 
recommendations have been implemented; 

k. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified; 

l. For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and 
maintaining a process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and 
taking corrective action on report audit findings from prior periods and preparing a 
summary schedule of prior audit findings; 

m. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and 
preparing a corrective action plan for such findings; 

n. For submitting the reporting package and Data Collection Form to the appropriate parties;  

o. For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the 
contractor is responsible for program compliance; 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 7 
 
 
 

 

p. To provide us with: 
 

i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal 
award programs, such as records, documentation, and other matters; 
 

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of 
the audit; and 
 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 

q. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the 
current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the basic financial statements as a whole;  
 

r. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee 
nonattest work; 
 

s. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and 
safeguarding assets; 
 

t. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the City involving 
management, employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud 
could have a material effect on compliance; 
 

u. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided; 
 

v. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other 
sensitive information; and 
 

w. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us 
in your management representation letter. 

 
With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above, you 
acknowledge and understand your responsibility: (a) for the preparation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (b) to provide us with 
the appropriate written representations regarding the schedule of expenditures of federal awards; 
(c) to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that 
contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and that indicates that we have reported 
on such schedule; and (d) to present the schedule of expenditures of federal awards with the 
audited financial statements, or if the schedule of expenditures of federal awards will not be 
presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 
 

 

available to the intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the 
date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon. 
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those 
charged with governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in 
connection with the audit. 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request, and will locate 
any documents or invoices selected by us for testing. 
 
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to 
our firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval 
before printing.  You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for 
our approval before it is distributed. 
 
Fees and Timing 
 
Kristy Davis is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter.  Her 
responsibilities include supervising Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C.’s services 
performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm 
representative to sign the audit report.  We expect to begin our audit around December 2, 2019, 
and to issue our report no later than March 31, 2020.   
 
Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual 
out-of-pocket expenses.  We estimate that our fee, including out-of-pocket expenses, will be 
$36,480.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and 
the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  This fee estimate is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances 
will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will 
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.  
Whenever possible, we will attempt to use the City’s personnel to assist in the preparation of 
schedules and analyses of accounts.  This effort could substantially reduce our time requirements 
and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit.  Our invoices for these fees will be rendered 
each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  Service fees will be assessed 
on any amount outstanding more than 30 days after the invoice date at a rate equal to one and 
one-half percent per month.  Further, in accordance with our firm policies, work may be 
suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your 
account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement 
will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have 
not completed our report.  You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to 
reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.  Further, we will 
be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting 
matters of a routine nature. 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 9 
 
 
 

 

Other Matters 
 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax 
or e-mail, and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of 
misdirected or intercepted communications. 
 
Our firm may transmit confidential information that you provided to us to third parties in order 
to facilitate delivering our services to you.  We have obtained confidentiality agreements with all 
our service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will take 
reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of confidential information to others.  We will remain responsible for the 
work provided by any third-party service providers used under this agreement.  By your 
signature below, you consent to having confidential information transmitted to entities outside 
the firm.  Please feel free to inquire if you would like additional information regarding the 
transmission of confidential information to entities outside the firm. 
 
Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial 
statements published electronically on your internet website, you understand the electronic sites 
are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information 
contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site 
with the original document. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & 
Therrell, P.C. and constitutes confidential information.  However, we may be requested to make 
certain audit documentation available to regulators and federal agencies and the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to 
peer reviewers.  If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, 
we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.  These 
parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, 
including other governmental agencies.  We agree to retain our audit documentation or 
workpapers for a period of at least seven years from the date of our report. 
 
Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and 
accounting matters of a routine nature. 
 
During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved 
controls over, your operations.  We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate 
level of management, either orally or in writing. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may 
become aware during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial 
statements are issued. 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 10 
 
 
 

 

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to those charged with 
governance the following significant findings from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting 
practices; 
 

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 

 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 

 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 

 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding 
their oversight of the financial reporting process; 
 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of 
management as a result of our audit procedures; 
 

 Representations we requested from management; 
 

 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
 

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the 
subject of correspondence, with management 

 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a 
copy of our latest external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files. 
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements including our 
respective responsibilities. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to 
working with you and your staff. 
 
 
      Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
 



The City Council and  
  the City Manager 
City of Belton, Texas 
October 9, 2019 
Page 11 
 
 
 

 

RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding  
 
City of Belton, Texas 
 
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of City of Belton, Texas by: 
 
 
 
       
Management Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
       
Title 
 
 
 
       
Governance Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
       
Title 



 
 

 

 

  
  Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors 

 
Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control 

 
December 10, 2018 
 
To the owners of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. and the Peer Review Committee of the Texas Society of 
Certified Public Accountants. 
 
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd 
& Therrell, P.C. in effect for the year ending June 30, 2018.  Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the 
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 
 
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary.  The summary also includes an explanation 
of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable professional standards, if 
any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating.    
 
Firm’s Responsibility 
 
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all 
material respects.  The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as 
not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating 
weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.  
 
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s compliance 
therewith based on our review. 
 
Required Selections and Considerations 
 
Engagements selected for review included an engagement performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act; audits of employee benefit plans, and an audit performed 
under FDICIA.    
 
As part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if applicable, 
in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & 
Therrell, P.C. in effect for the year ended June 30, 2018, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide 
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects.  Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail.  Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd 
& Therrell, P.C. has received a peer review rating of pass.  
 

                                                           
Certified Public Accountants 

993 North Third Street 
PO Box 2993 

Abilene, Texas 79604-2993 
phone 325-677-6251 

fax 325-677-0006 
www.condley.com 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 5   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
         
       Date:  October 22, 2019  
       Case No.: Z-19-21 

Request: PD (C1) to Amended PD (C1)  
       Applicant: Belton Land LLC 

Owner: Bell County Joint Venture  
Roy Levit  

Agenda Item #6 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned Development (Commercial-
1) District for an RV Park, to Amended Planned Development (Commercial-1) District for an 
RV Park to consider variances to the RV Park development standards (Chapter 19 City Code 
of Ordinances) on approximately 21.757 acres located at 3360 I-35 Service Road, on the east 
side of I-35, south of Groves Road.  
 
Originating Department:  Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning PD (Commercial-1) Proposed Zoning Amended PD (Commercial-1) 
     
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Commercial/Retail Corridor 
 
Design Standards Type Area 2:   Primarily commercial highway frontage uses   
 
Case Summary 
 
This property was rezoned to a Planned Development (Commercial – 1) District for an RV Park 
in March, 2018. A one lot subdivision, Belton Land LLC Addition, was administratively approved 
in January, 2019. The applicant has submitted a site plan in conjunction with the building 
permit, and per PD conditions, must comply with all requirements of Chapter 19, City Code of 
Ordinances (Recreational Vehicle Parks).  
 
The applicant is requesting variances to two elements of Chapter 19 as follows:   
 
   1) Minimum roadway width requirement of 20’ to allow a 16’ width for one way roads; and  
   2) Maximum 300’ spacing of restroom facilities from RV sites to allow a distance of 500’. 
 
Surrounding Conditions 
 
The adjacent property to the north is the site of Pro Star Rental and was rezoned to Commercial 
2 District in October, 2017. The adjacent property to the south is undeveloped with split 
zoning—mostly Light Industrial with Commercial Highway along the I-35 frontage. Property to 
the east is undeveloped and zoned Agricultural District. To the west is I-35; property along the 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 5   
 

southbound I-35 frontage road consists of undeveloped land, residential uses, Sunbelt RV 
Center, Belton RV Park, and Bell County Expo Center with Commercial Highway, Agricultural, 
and Planned Development Zoning Districts. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
No change is proposed to the zoning district currently assigned to this property, other than 
amending the existing PD conditions. The Commercial-1 Base Zoning District will remain and 
allows the land uses below:   
 

• Any use permitted in the Retail District (i.e. Gasoline or service station) 
• Auto sales 
• Consumer repair services 
• Food sales 
• Home improvement Center with outside storage 
• Hotel or motel 
• Pawn Shop 
• Trailer Rental 
• Tool and Light Equipment Rental 
• Wholesale club or department store 

 
In addition to the uses above, the PD allows an RV Park, subject to the conditions in Ordinance 
#2018-08, which was approved in March, 2018, and is attached. The only changes proposed 
to the PD ordinance are variances to the minimum roadway width and to the distance of 
restroom facilities from the RV sites.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
The applicant proposes to develop an RV park on 17.4 acres with future commercial uses on 
the remaining 4.3 acres fronting along I-35. Access to the RV Park is proposed from the I-35 
frontage road with a second entrance proposed from a future extension of Capitol Way. With 
the final plat, Belton Land LLC Addition, the applicant dedicated ROW and contributed funds 
for street improvements and a 5’ wide sidewalk for Capitol Way; these funds have been placed 
in an escrow account. A 6’ wide sidewalk is required along the I-35 frontage road and will be 
constructed in conjunction with the site development.  
 
Chapter 19, City Code of Ordinances (Recreational Vehicle Parks), outlines various 
requirements for RV parks to include, density, streets, toilet/lavatory facilities, open space, 
vehicle parking, accessory structures, setbacks/screening, drainage, maintenance, lighting, fire 
protection, refuse disposal, sanitary waste, and minimum site standards. The applicant’s site 
plan meets all requirements except for those related to street width and distance to restroom 
facilities. Their alternative proposal is to comply with National RV Park Standards and KOA 
Standards. These are discussed in detail below. 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 3 of 5   
 

Section 19-68 – Private Streets. 
 
Chapter 19 requires a minimum pavement width of 20’ for private streets that provide direct 
access to five or more RV sites. This ordinance does not distinguish between one-way and 
two-way streets. The applicant proposes to exceed the width requirement for two-way streets 
by providing a 25’ pavement width; however, for one-way streets, the applicant is proposing a 
16’ pavement width, and is requesting a variance to the 20’ requirement. No parking will be 
allowed on the side of the one-way streets. 
 
The applicant has provided documentation from the National RV Park Standards (National Fire 
Protection Association--NFPA 1194) where the minimum street width is stated as 10’ per traffic 
lane. The applicant has also provided documentation from KOA Standards where their 
recommendation is a 15’ width for one-way streets. The applicant is exceeding these standards 
by proposing 16’ widths with a 40’ turning radius at all corners to facilitate the movement of 
large RV’s.  
 
We have contacted other cities in our region to compare their requirements regarding roadway 
widths to our adopted RV Ordinance. Please refer to the attached table—Comparison of RV 
Park Standards. The roadway width requirement varies among the cities. For one-way roads, 
Temple requires 20’, while Waco requires 11’ with no parking on the side, and 18’ with parking 
allowed on one side. 
 
Staff supports this variance request, since the proposed 16’ width is adequate for one-way 
travel and no parking will be allowed on either side. 
 
Section 19-69 – Toilet and Lavatory Facilities Required. 
 
Chapter 19 requires restroom facilities to be located within 300’ of any RV site. The National 
RV Park Standards requires restroom facilities to be located within 500’ of any RV or camping 
site that does not have an individual sewer connection. KOA Standards are slightly more 
restrictive, requiring sites without sewer connection to be within 400’ of restroom facilities. The 
applicant will be providing individual sewer connection to all RV sites, so only the tent sites will 
have no on-site sewer connection. These 4 tent sites are approximately 310’ from restroom 
facilities and will meet the KOA standards (within 400’) and the National Standards (within 
500’). The RV sites that have full hook-ups with water, sewer, and electricity, will all be within 
500’ of the restroom facilities. Neither KOA nor the National Standards have a maximum 
distance between sites with individual sewer connections and restroom facilities.  
 
In comparing the requirements of other cities in our region, most do not have a maximum 
distance requirement. Those that do—Harker Heights and Waco—require a maximum distance 
of 200’, and do not distinguish between those sites that have individual sewer connections and 
those that do not.  
 
Staff supports the requested variance to allow a maximum 500’ spacing between restroom 
facilities and sites with individual sewer connections; however, we recommend sites without 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 4 of 5   
 

individual sewer connections (4 tent sites) observe a more stringent spacing requirement.  The 
4 tent sites are right on the edge of the 300’ distance, with only one site slightly in excess of 
this distance.  Staff’s recommendation to the P&ZC was to allow a maximum spacing of 350’ 
between sites without individual sewer connection and restroom facilities. The P&ZC members 
discussed this issue and supported extending the maximum distance between restroom 
facilities and sites without sewer connections (tent sites) to 400’.    
 
Follow Up 
 
Staff has been collecting and reviewing information from other cities regarding RV park 
requirements to compare with requirements in Chapter 19. We will present a full report on our 
findings with recommendations for potential changes in the near future. Any feedback or 
direction from the Planning Commission and City Council is welcome. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on October 15, 2019, and with a vote of 6-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of this zoning change from PD (Commercial-1) for an RV 
Park to Amended PD (Commercial-1) for an RV Park subject to the conditions below. Staff 
concurs with their recommendation. (NOTE:  Text in red represents changes from the original 
PD conditions.)  
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Commercial-1 Zoning District in 
all respects, and in addition a recreational vehicle (RV) park is a permitted use.  
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
and the conceptual site plan, including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
3. The development of the RV Park shall conform to all requirements of Chapter 19, City 

Code of Ordinances (Recreational Vehicle Parks), except as noted below: 
 

a. Variance allowed to the street width standards to allow one-way streets to 
observe a minimum 16’ pavement width with no parking on the side, instead of 
the required 20’. 

b. Variance allowed to the distance from restroom facilities to allow a maximum 
distance of 500’ from all RV sites with an individual sewer connection, and a 
maximum distance of 400’ from all sites (tents) without an individual sewer 
connection. 
 

4. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11.  



City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 5 of 5   
 

 
5. A subdivision replat is required before developing the I-35 frontage area for 

retail/commercial use.  
Attachments 
 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owner list 
Ordinance #2018-08 
City Code of Ordinances Chapter 19, Recreational Vehicle Parks 
Variance request & exhibits 
Excerpt from National RV Park Standards (NFPA 1194) and KOA Campground Standards 

1. Site Plan 
2. Comparison of RV Park Standards 

P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 







































































1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Luke Potts, David Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, Dave 
Covington, Ty Hendrick and Allison Turner. Chair Brett Baggerly, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach 
Krueger were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Planner Tina Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
4. Z-19-21   Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned Development 

(Commercial-1) District for an RV Park, to Amended Planned Development (Commercial-1) 
District for an RV Park to consider variances to the RV Park development standards (Chapter 
19 City Code of Ordinances) on approximately 21.757 acres located at 3360 I-35 Service Road, 
on the east side of I-35, south of Groves Road. (Audio 2:27)  

 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report.  
 
Vice Chair Covington opened the public hearing; with no one requesting to speak, the public hearing 
was closed.  
 
Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve Z-19-21, subject to the conditions below: 

 
1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Commercial-1 Zoning District in all 

respects, and in addition, a recreational vehicle (RV) park is a permitted use.  
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the 
conceptual site plan, including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
3. The development of the RV Park shall conform to all requirements of Chapter 19, City Code 

of Ordinances (Recreational Vehicle Parks), except as noted below: 
 

a. Variance allowed to the street width standards to allow one-way streets to observe a 
minimum 16’ pavement width with no parking on the side, instead of the required 
20’. 

b. Variance allowed to the distance from restroom facilities to allow a maximum 
distance of 500’ from all RV sites with an individual sewer connection, and a 
maximum distance of 400’ from all sites (tents) without an individual sewer 
connection. 
 

4. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11.  
 



2 
 

5. A subdivision replat is required before developing the I-35 frontage area for 
retail/commercial use.  

 
Mr. Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-52 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
COMMERCIAL-1 FOR AN RV PARK TO AMENDED PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
COMMERCIAL-1 FOR AN RV PARK ZONING DISTRICT ON A 21.757 ACRE TRACT, 
WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN 
STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Bell County Joint Venture, owner of the following described property 
has presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed 
said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition 
and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and 
by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the 
City of Belton was set for the 15th day of October, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, 
said district being described as follows: 

 
3360 S IH-35 Service Road, 21.757 acres, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 22nd day of 
October, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on tracts of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Planned Development Commercial-1 for 
an RV Park to Amended Planned Development Commercial-1 for an RV Park Zoning 
District in accordance with Section 24 – Commercial-1, and the Design Standards in 
Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.   

 
The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the 

following conditions: 
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Commercial-1 Zoning 
District in all respects, and in addition a recreational vehicle (RV) park is a permitted 
use.  
 



2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
and the conceptual site plan (Exhibit “B”), including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards 

 
3. The development of the RV Park shall conform to all requirements of Chapter 19, 

City Code of Ordinances (Recreational Vehicle Parks), except as noted below: 
 

a. Variance allowed to the street width standards to allow one-way streets to 
observe a minimum 16’ pavement width with no parking on the side, instead 
of the required 20’. 

b. Variance allowed to the distance from restroom facilities to allow a maximum 
distance of 500’ from all RV sites with an individual sewer connection, and a 
maximum distance of 400’ from all sites (tents) without an individual sewer 
connection. 
 

4. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11.  
 

5. A subdivision replat is required before developing the I-35 frontage area for 
retail/commercial use.  
 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 22nd day of 
October, 2019, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
22nd day of October, 2019. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



I
N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 
H

I
G

H

W

A

Y

 
N

U

M

B

E

R

 
3

5




(
R

O

W

 
V

A

R

I
E

S

)

POND B

POND A

FUTURE COMMERCIAL

DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE COMMERCIAL

DEVELOPMENT

500 FEET

400 FEET

400 FEET

500 FEET

©
   

T
hi

s 
 g

ra
ph

ic
  o

r 
ot

he
r 

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

 th
e 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
 a

nd
 c

on
fid

en
tia

l  
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f  
A

M
C

D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
,  

In
c.

   
an

d 
m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

,  
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
,  

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
or

 u
se

d 
in

 a
ny

ot
he

r 
  m

an
ne

r 
 in

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

 o
f  

th
e 

pr
io

r 
w

ri
tte

n 
co

ns
en

t o
f  

 A
M

C
  D

es
ig

n 
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

.

SHEET NO.

T
h
ro

w
er

 D
es

ig
n

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S

P
.
O

.
 
B

O
X

 
4

1
9

5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
S

T
I
N

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

 
 
 
 
 
7

8
7

0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
5

1
2

)
 
4

7
6

-
4

4
5

6

B
EL

TO
N

 K
O

A 
R

V 
P

AR
K

S
IT

E 
P

LA
N

3
3
6
0
 
S

 
I
H

 
3
5
 
S

V
C

 
R

D

B
E

L
T

O
N

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

RESTROOM
DISTANCE
EXHIBIT

SCALE: 1" = 60'EXHIBIT "B"



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 4   
 
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  October 22, 2019  

Case No.: P-19-31 West Canyon Trails Ph I 
      Request: Final Plat 

Applicant:  Lina Chtay, Belton Engineering, Inc. 
Owner/Developer: Randy Taylor, Centex B & L  
   Construction, LLC 

 
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider a final plat of West Canyon Trails Phase I, comprising 11.225 acres, located on the 
south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell Street. 
 
Originating Department: Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Single Family – 3 (SF-3) 
    
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Mixture of Residential & Commercial/Retail 
with Commercial Corridor Overlay along Loop 121 and Avenue O. 
 
Design Standards Type Area:   9 & 4 
9 – (Majority of area) – Projected to be a mixture of uses on larger parcels of land.  
4 – (Near intersection of US 190 and Loop 121) – Nodes projected for commercial, retail, and 
neighborhood service uses with a higher standard as they are gateways to other areas. 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is Phase I of West Canyon Trails, consisting of 50 residential lots. The preliminary plat of 
this entire subdivision, consisting of 170 residential lots, one retail lot, and six parcels, was 
approved in March, 2019. A proposed phasing plan has been provided and is summarized 
below: 
 

Ph I: 50 residential lots; main entrance from Avenue O; Parcel A – Detention Pond 
Ph II: 15 residential lots; second entrance from Avenue O; Retail lot; Parcels D & E – 

acreage 
Ph III: 47 residential lots; emergency access easement – Parcel F; Parcel B – Detention 

Pond and Parcel C – Private Park  
Ph IV: 59 residential lots.  
 
Total: 171 residential lots – one additional residential lot has been added, due to 

reduction in size of the detention pond – Parcel A 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 4   
 
 

This property was rezoned to the Single Family – 3 and Retail Zoning Districts in January this 
year. Phase I only includes the SF3 area. The lots satisfy all area requirements for the SF3 
Zoning District as noted below: 
 

SF3 
• Front Yard:  25’ 
• Side Yard: 5’; 15’ from street ROW* 
• Rear Yard: 20’ 
• Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft. 
• Lot Width: 50’ 
• Lot Depth: 90’ 

 
* NOTE: A note is provided on the plat that any garage arranged to be entered from the side 
yard facing a public street shall have a minimum setback of 25’. This will ensure there is 
adequate room to park a vehicle in the driveway to provide the required minimum of 4 parking 
spaces on site, i.e. 2 in the garage and 2 in the driveway. 
 
Phase I is generally consistent with the approved preliminary plat. Following is a summary of 
the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this subdivision plat. 
 
Water: An existing 8” water line runs along the south side of West Avenue O. The applicant is 
tying into this line and extending 8” water lines throughout this phase of the subdivision.  
 
Sewer: An existing 12” sewer line is available for extension near the northwest corner of this 
property. The applicant is extending 8” and 6” sewer lines throughout the subdivision.  
 
Access: Per Subdivision Ordinance Section 502.01.J., a plat with 170 single family residential 
lots is required to have three entrances. Ultimately, this requirement will be satisfied when Laila 
Lane is extended from the east and west--these two entrances, along with the main entrance 
from Avenue O (Alan Trails) will provide three entrances. In the interim, a variance to this 
requirement was approved with the preliminary plat for this subdivision, as follows: 
 

Access 1:   Alan Trails - Main entrance off of Avenue O 
Access 2:   Long Creek Lane - Temporary second access point connecting to Avenue O 
Access 3: 15’ wide emergency vehicle access easement to Loop 121. Applicant extending 

sewer stub-outs to adjacent properties to the west to encourage development of 
these tracts, which will in turn promote the extension of Laila Lane from Loop 
121 to this subdivision. 

 
This final plat of Phase I proposes 50 residential lots, which only requires one entrance, so the 
access requirement is satisfied with Alan Trails connecting to Avenue O. 
 
Streets: West Avenue O is a major collector on the city’s Thoroughfare Plan map. Major 
collectors require a minimum ROW width of 80’. There is currently approximately 120’ of ROW; 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 3 of 4   
 
 

no additional ROW is needed. Existing pavement width of Avenue O in this vicinity is 
approximately 42’; there is no curb/gutter but instead a bar-ditch drainage system. The City 
Public Works Director has determined that no perimeter street improvements are needed for 
Avenue O. 
 
The primary entrance from Avenue O, Alan Trails, will be constructed as a collector street at 
the entrance with a 49’ pavement width with curb and gutter in a 70’ ROW to facilitate one 
entrance lane and two exit lanes. This street will transition to 60’ ROW and 37’ pavement width 
before it connects to Ayham Trails, a local street. The remaining streets in the subdivision will 
be constructed as local streets with a 50’ ROW, 31’ pavement width, with curb and gutter. 
 
Drainage: Two on-site detention ponds (Parcels A & B) are proposed to address drainage 
needs for the entire subdivision and will be owned and maintained by the HOA. One detention 
pond--Parcel A, is proposed with this final plat of Phase I.  
 
Sidewalks: Per the city’s Subdivision Ordinance Section 503, a 5’ wide sidewalk is required 
along both sides of collector streets and the subdivision side of collector streets. Therefore, a 
5’ wide sidewalk is required along the south side of W. Avenue O and along both sides of Alan 
Trails where it will be constructed as a collector street.  
 
Parkland Dedication/Fees: Per Subdivision Ordinance Section 517, the parkland fee is $200 
per residential unit, or land may be dedicated based on one acre for each 100 new dwelling 
units. With the preliminary plat, the applicant’s request for a variance to this requirement was 
approved to allow the funds to be used to develop a private park consisting of 0.837 acres with 
amenities to include sidewalks, benches, and landscaping. Private parkland is not proposed 
within this phase of the development but is planned with Phase III. The requirement for Phase 
I, consisting of 50 lots, is $10,000. The applicant proposes to satisfy this requirement by paying 
the $10,000 fee and placing the funds in an escrow account where the funds may be 
reimbursed when the private park is developed. Staff is satisfied with this arrangement. 
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable as a final plat, subject to all 
items identified in the city’s letter of conditions to the applicant/engineer dated October 17, 
2019.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on October 15, 2019, and with a vote of 6-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of the final plat of West Canyon Trails Phase I, subject 
to the conditions below; staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 

1. Payment of park fee requirement for Phase 1 ($10,000) with funds placed in an escrow 
account until private park plans are approved and the park ready for development, at 
which time the funds will be returned to the developer; and 

2. All items identified in the city’s letter of conditions to the applicant/engineer dated 
October 17, 2019.  



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 4 of 4   
 
 

Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Phasing Plan 
City letter of conditions dated October 11, 2019 (replaced by letter dated October 17, 2019) 
City letter of conditions dated October 17, 2019 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 

 





















           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
October 17, 2019 
 
Project: WEST CANYON TRAILS – FINAL PLAT AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS 
Applicant: BELTON ENGINEERING 
Date Submitted:  9-5-19 
2nd Submittal:   10-4-19 
3rd Submittal:  10-9-19 
Location:  W. LOOP 121 & W. AVE. O — 11.349 ACRES 

 
***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 

 
PLANNING – Cheryl Maxwell – CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov: 

1. Proposal to satisfy parkland fee/dedication for this phase by escrowing funds which may be 
returned to the developer when subsequent phases are developed and private park 
land/amenities are provided, as approved with preliminary plat, is subject to Council approval—
50 lots x $200 = $10,000.   

2. Restrictive covenants have been provided and are under review. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/KPA – Angellia Points, APoints@BeltonTexas.gov:  
1. Plat 

a. The following also need dual PUE/DE because of encroachment of stormwater pipe and 
working space needed for maintenance of the pipe. 

i. Block 3 Lots 4 and 7. 
ii. Block 4 Lot 1.  

iii. Block 2 Lot 5. 
b. Previous comment: Alan Trails is a 37’ B/B roadway, which is a collector. The minimum 

ROW width for a collector is 60’. This needs to be provided per the PW Design Manual 
and the City’s adopted Thoroughfare Plan.  

c. 1’ non access easement is required along Lot 2 (Block 1) and Lot 1 (Block 2) along Alan 
Trails. Driveway for these lots shall be from Ayham Trails, not Alan.  

d. This plan is likely going to trigger the need for an environmental assessment due to the 
volume and acreage of land disturbed. Please confirm with the Natural Resources Code 
of Texas ,Title 9, Chapter 191. Provide approval of environmental clearance from the 
THC. This is a State requirement, not City, although the State has tasks the City to 
enforce this.  

2. Streets/Sidewalks 
a. A traffic control plan is required for Alan Trails and utility connections off of W Ave O.  
b. Previous comment: Add a stop bar at W Ave O and Alan Trails intersection on Sheet 

C3.00.  
c. Previous comment: Please review TDLR rules and regulations. TDLR registration isn’t 

needed for when slopes exceed 5%... it is needed when a certain threshold is met. Prove 
TDLR review is needed or not needed.  

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 

mailto:CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov


           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

d. The ramps across Alan need to be identified by type. The layer used looks like riprap; 
revise to show ramp and truncated domes for clarity during construction.  

e. A handrail detail was provided in the plans. Is handrail proposed on this project? If so, 
where, how long, etc.?  

f. Previous comment: C0.01 Note 37 – Revise note to state the contractor must clean the 
roads daily.  

g. Previous comment: Sidewalk needs to extend to Ayham. If sidewalk is to be built with 
the home builder, the sidewalk still needs to be shown. Make it clear on the plat that 
the homebuilder is responsible for the sidewalk construction. Make a note on sheet 
C7.0 as well.  

3. Drainage 
a. C6.00 needs to include language about MS4 and SWPPP requirements. The City needs to 

receive the TCEQ permitting documentation prior to the contractor breaking ground.  
b. Sign and record the proposed drainage maintenance agreement. Provide the recorded 

document and recorded number to the City.  
c. Thanks for clarifying the Tc methodology in the meeting. However, state the Tc 

methodology in writing for the record. The City, along with TxDOT, uses the Kerby 
method. The Tc seems to be too long.  

d. DA3 still is showing no development with this phase and has the same pre- and post-
development area, yet is proposed to have a shorter flow path, flatter slope, and longer 
time of concentration. The comment responses says DA3 is not part of this plat. DA3 
should remain the same between pre- and post-construction if not part of this plat. 
Please revise.  

e. The quarry blocks were approved as a deterrent around the pond in lieu of a fence for 
the Strategic Drainage Plan requirement, but this does not address any boundary 
fencing requirement per the Subdivision Ordinance. Clarify, in writing, the purpose of 
the blocks around the pond. In previous meetings, Lina stated the blocks were for 
capacity. Please clarify. Please note, the need for perimeter fence may still be required 
as a subdivision requirement.  

f. The rework of the crown elevations of the pipes entering and exiting the inlets are ok.  
However, the placement of the inlets is still opposing the flow of the system.  The 
reason given was that the placement of the inlets is due to future driveways for the 
homes.  These situations can be cured by placing the inlets at more strategic locations.  
An option is shown on the attached drawing.   

4. General Utilities  
a. Callouts on C7.05 do not point to the correct items on the sheet. Please revise.  
b. Revise all clearance dimensions between utilities to be outside of pipe to outside of 

pipe. Some are flowline to flowline.  
c. What is the clearance between the waterline/sewerline and stormwater pipe at the 

following locations? 
i. Sta 0+50 on C7.01 

ii. Sta 0+30 on C7.02 
iii. Sta 1+50 on C7.02  
iv. Sta 3+50 on C7.03 

5. Wastewater 
a. Show the wastewater line capacities using more common terms: Flow in MGD (or 

gallons per day) for design (for this subdivision phases), MGD when the pipe is full, and 



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

Velocity in ft/sec when full. This will allow the City to verify the sewer is correctly sized 
for the proposed development plus assumed I&I and peak flows.  

b. The rim elevation on the manhole at 5+50 on C7.02 is incorrect.  
c. Specify the DR sizing for all sewer pressure pipes.  
d. TCEQ Chapter 217.53.(d).7.a states the pressure pipe shall terminate at joints that are 

designed to seal at atmospheric pressure. Please confirm.  
e. C7.05 flow from west arrow indicates backflows flow of sewer. Please revise.  
f. The manhole on C7.01Sta 3+72 is at or very close to 9’ from the waterline. Please clarify 

separation distance.  
6. Water 

a. Previous comment: Callout waterline sizes in plan view on C7.05 and C7.06.  
b. Previous comment: Add a valve at the end of the waterlines on C7.06, C7.02, and C7.01.  
c. Show the ARV at the high point on C7.0 and specify the height above finish grade. 

Include an ARV Detail in the plans.  
d. Although it is at an exaggerated scale, the waterline on Sheet C7.01 shows to bend 

under the stormwater and wastewater lines at Sta 0+50. Callout fittings and bends 
needed.  

BUILDING OFFICIAL – Bruce Ebbert, BEbbert@BeltonTexas.gov: 
• No comments 

FIRE DEPT – Jeff Booker, JBooker@BeltonTexas.gov: 
• No further comments. 

POLICE DEPT – Chief Gene Ellis, GEllis@BeltonTexas.gov: 
• No further comments. 

GIS – James Gibson, JGibson@BeltonTexas.gov: 
• No further comments. 

Outside Utility Provider Comments 
Oncor:  
AT&T:   
Atmos Energy:  
Charter Communications:  
Grande Communications:  
Spectrum (Time Warner):  
USPS:  
Clearwater UCD:  
TXDOT: 

  
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as the 
Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 

mailto:JBooker@BeltonTexas.gov


1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Luke Potts, David Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, Dave 
Covington, Ty Hendrick and Allison Turner. Chair Brett Baggerly, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach 
Krueger were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Planner Tina Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 

 
7. P-19-31 Consider a final plat of West Canyon Trails Phase I, comprising 11.225 acres, 

located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell Street. (Audio 
28:04) 
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit C). 
 
Mr. Jarratt made a motion to approve P-19-31, subject to the conditions below: 
 

1. Payment of park fee requirement for Phase 1 ($10,000) with funds placed in an escrow 
account until private park plans are approved and the park ready for development, at which 
time the funds will be returned to the developer; and 

2. All items identified in the city’s letter of conditions to the applicant/engineer dated October 
11, 2019.  

 



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  October 22, 2019  

Case No.: P-19-30 Trujillo Addition 
      Request: Final Plat 
      Applicant: All County Surveying, Inc. 
      Owner/Developer: Nicolas & Maria Trujillo 
Agenda Item #8 
     
Consider a final plat of Trujillo Addition, comprising 1.102 acre, located at 1601 Connell Street, 
on the west side of Connell Street, north of Laila Lane. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is a two lot subdivision proposed for residential use. Each lot comprises approximately 
0.523 acre. A house and an accessory building are currently located on this site and will be 
removed. The applicant plans to build a house on one lot for himself, and the other lot will be 
for a family member.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property was rezoned to Single Family-1 District earlier this year in March. The proposed 
lots satisfy all area requirements for the SF1 Zoning District as noted below: 
 

Minimum Lot Area:   10,000 sq ft  Front Yard Setback: 25 ft    
Minimum Lot Width: 70 ft      Side Yard Setback: 7 ft      
Minimum Lot Depth: 100 ft   Rear Yard Setback: 20 ft 

    
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this 
subdivision plat. 
 
Water/Sewer: There is an existing 8” water line and 10” sewer line along Connell Street; no 
extensions are needed to provide service to these lots. Existing fire hydrant locations satisfy 
fire code requirements. 
 
Drainage: With just two single family residences proposed on this site, minimal impact, if any, 
is anticipated regarding drainage. Drainage will be evaluated with the building permit review.  
 
Streets/Sidewalks: Connell Street is a major collector on the City Thoroughfare Plan, which 
requires a minimum 80’ ROW. The plat shows the existing ROW varies from approximately 



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 2 of 3   
 

54.4’ to 63.4’. The applicant is responsible for dedicating ½ of the ROW needed to achieve the 
80’, and is dedicating 12’ along the frontage.   
 
The existing pavement width of Connell Street is approximately 22’; there is no curb/gutter. 
Perimeter street improvements are typically required for plats with street frontage per 
Subdivision Ordinance Section 502.01.H. This requirement applies to the Connell Street 
frontage.  The applicant is responsible for ½ the cost of paving to widen the roadway to 37’ and 
installing curb/gutter along the frontage of this subdivision. This cost is estimated at $65,463. 
A 5’ wide sidewalk is also required along the Connell Street frontage, per Subdivision 
Ordinance Section 503. The sidewalk cost is estimated at $7,800. The applicant is requesting 
a variance to both of these requirements. The Subdivision Ordinance includes a provision for 
waiving the perimeter street improvement requirement for a single family development not 
exceeding 3 acres in size or 3 lots. This subdivision meets these criteria; therefore, staff 
supports the variance request for both the perimeter street improvement and sidewalk 
requirements.  
 
Parkland Dedication/Fee: Per Subdivision Ordinance Section 517, residential subdivisions 
are required to dedicate suitable lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial 
contribution for the acquisition and development of such parkland. The fee in lieu of dedication 
is $200/lot, which totals $400 for this subdivision. This was staff’s recommendation to the 
P&ZC.  At the P&ZC meeting, the applicant requested consideration of a reduced fee, 
since there is currently a residence on this property and the division of this tract results 
in only one additional dwelling unit. The P&ZC supported application of this requirement 
for the additional lot, or payment of $200. These funds will be used to develop the city park 
near the Liberty Valley development, which is within 1 mile of this site.   
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable as a final plat, subject to all 
items identified in the city’s letter of conditions to the applicant/engineer dated October 17, 
2019. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on October 15, 2019, and with a vote of 6-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of the final plat of Trujillo Addition, subject to the 
conditions below; staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 

1. Approval of variance to the perimeter street improvement requirement for Connell 
Street;  

2. Approval of variance to the sidewalk requirement along Connell Street;  
3. Application of park fee requirement only for the additional lot ($200); and 
4. All items identified in the city letter of conditions dated October 17, 2019. 

 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Maps 



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
October 22, 2019 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Variance Requests 
City letter of condition dated October 11, 2019 (replaced by letter of October 17, 2019) 
City letter of conditions dated October 17, 2019  
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 

 



















           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
October 17, 2019 
 
Project: TRUJILLO ADDITION  
Applicant: ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC – Chuck  
Date Submitted:  9-13-19  
2nd Submittal: 10-7-19 
3rd Submittal:   10-14-19 (Email) 
4th Submittal:  10-17-19 
Location:  1 ACRES and 1601 S. CONNELL STREET 

 
***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 

 
PLANNING – Cheryl Maxwell – CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov: 

1. The following variances have been requested and are subject to City Council approval: 
a. Variance to the perimeter street improvement requirement for Connell Street;  
b. Variance to the sidewalk requirement along Connell Street;  
c. Application of park fee requirement only for the additional lot ($200). 

2. No additional comments. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS/KPA – Angellia Points, APoints@BeltonTexas.gov:  
 No Further Comments  
BUILDING OFFICIAL – Bruce Ebbert, BEbbert@BeltonTexas.gov: 
 No Comments. 
FIRE DEPT – Jeff Booker, JBooker@BeltonTexas.gov: 
 No Comments.  
POLICE DEPT – Chief Gene Ellis, GEllis@BeltonTexas.gov: 
 No Comments. 
GIS – James Gibson, JGibson@BeltonTexas.gov: 

No Comments. 
BELL COUNTY ENG. – Gary Stermer, Gary.Stermer@BellCounty.Texas.gov: 

Comments. 
 
Outside Utility Provider Comments 

Oncor: Any relocation of AT&T facilities required will only be done at customer’s 
expense. 
AT&T:  I am in agreement with the proposed plat.  
Atmos Energy: I am in agreement with the proposed plat.  
Charter Communications:  
Grande Communications:  
Spectrum (Time Warner):  
USPS:  

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 

mailto:CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov
mailto:APoints@BeltonTexas.gov


           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

Clearwater UCD:  
TXDOT: 

  
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as the 
Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 



1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Luke Potts, David Jarratt, Quinton Locklin, Dave 
Covington, Ty Hendrick and Allison Turner. Chair Brett Baggerly, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach 
Krueger were absent. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, Planner Tina Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
6. P-19-30 Consider a final plat of Trujillo Addition, comprising 1.102 acre, located at 1601 

Connell Street, on the west side of Connell Street, north of Laila Lane. (Audio 21:18) 
 

Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit B).  
 
Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve P-19-30, subject to the conditions below:  
 

1. Approval of variance to the perimeter street improvement requirement for Connell Street;  
2. Approval of variance to the sidewalk requirement along Connell Street;  
3. Application of park fee requirement only for the additional lot ($200); and 
4. All items identified in the city letter of conditions dated October 11, 2019. 

 
Ms. Turner seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 


	Agenda - 102219
	City Managers Memo
	#4 - Minutes 10-08-19
	#5 - Staff Report - TAD Board Appointment
	#5 - Attachment

	#6 - Staff Report - Prof. Audit Services Agreement
	#6 - Attachment

	#7 - Staff Report - Zoning Change - 3360 I-35 Service Rd.
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - West Canyon Trails Ph. 1 Final Plat
	#8 - Attachments

	#9 - Staff Report - Trujillo Addition Final Plat
	#9 - Attachments




